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COMMUNITIES ALONG THE METROPOLITAN BRANCH
OF THE BALTIMORE AND OHIO RAILROAD

by
Everett B. Wilson

The explosive growth of Montgomery County's suburbs was made physically possible
by three notable developments:

-- The coming of the B & 0 Railroad in 1873.
-- The extension of the trolley lines in the 1890's.

-- The advent of the Model T Ford (and other autos) and the related expansion
of the County's highway system after 1900.
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The B & 0 track ran from the terminal in downtown Washington out through Takoma
Park and across the County to Dickerson and then into Frederick County to Point of
Rocks. There it joined what was then the railroad's main line from Baltimore to -
Frederick and then Cumberland and the west. (The new track originally known as the
Metropolitan Branch ultimately became part of the railroad's main passenger line.)

The route finally selected-- one of four possibilities that had been surveyed--
was to mean the creation of eight completely new communities in the County, in addi-
tion to stimulating seven already existing villages: Sligo, Montrose, Rockville,
Derwood, Gaithersburg, Germantown, and Barnesville.

The idea of building a railroad from the Nation's Capital to the north and west
had been suggested in the 1820's but was sidetracked in favor of constructing the
C & 0 Canal, which the railroad later helped to put out of business. Then a company
was formed in the 1850's to build a line from Georgetown to the north, but a financial
depression in 1857 discouraged that plan. Finally, the charter for the new branch of
the B & 0 was granted in 1865.

Although the existence of rail service to downtown Washington eventually was to
open up an important part of the County to commuting and suburbanization, those devel-
opments were comparatively slow in coming. In the 10 years prior to 1870, the County's
population rose by 2,241 persons, or 12 percent-- from 18,322 to 20,563. |In the follow-
ing decade during which the line was in operation for more than six years, the popula-
tion gained 4,116, or about 20 percent, more than a normal growth but not spectacular.
In that period, four new communities were started in a modest way along the line--
Knowles Station (Kensington), Washington Grove, Boyds, and Dickerson.

Between 1880 and 1890, the population gained only about 10 percent, reaching 27,185 <
Between 1890 and 1900, when trolley service also had reached the county, the population
rose to 30,541, a gain of a little over 12 percent.

Not all of the stations ultimately put in service were opened when the trains first
began to run; some stations were known by several names, and some did not bring about
the formation of new communities; notably, Linden, Ray's Quarry, Windham, Halpine,
Cloppers, and Little Seneca.

For a time, after the idea of suburban living and commuting by railroad had begun
to take hold, the B & 0 was a factor of real importance in County living. As close-in
Washington began to fill up, increasing numbers of downtown workers became more willing
to spend an hour or more a day commuting back and forth by railroad, in return for the
privilege of living in the wide open spaces of Montgomery County. However, the number
of commuters never became really large by today's standards, and the passenger traffic
never was too great west of Rockville.

The distance from Silver Spring Station, the first stop in the County, to Dickerson
Station, the last stop, is 28 miles. The run from Rockville to the original downtown
terminal at New Jersey Avenue and C Street measured 16 miles and took some 45 minutes in
1880 on a train that made all intervening stops.

Brief histories of the 15 communities along the B & 0 follow. The stories of
Silver Spring, Kensington, and Rockville are relatively short because they have been
well told in earlier available publications of the Montgomery County Historical Society.
The individual community histories are presented in geographical order as the railroad
reaches them from east to west. The mileages appearing next to the community names are =
the approximate distances from the present downtown terminal at Union Station.
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Takoma Park-- 6 mi.

S~ The first community served by the railroad, and the county's first suburb, was
Takoma Park. It did not have a station of its own, so the residents used the nearby
Silver Spring or Blair station. The town was established in 1883 when Benjamin F.
Gilbert, a real estate man, purchased 90-odd acres astride the Maryland-District Line
and along the railroad.

The tract he purchased was known as the Grammar farm, but the Martenet and Bond
map of 1865 does not show a farm with that name or the name of any other landowner or
resident in the immediate area. However, the Samuel M. Fenton family moved in 1870 to
what is now the corner of Maple Avenue and Sligo Creek Parkway.

Isaac Thomas opened the first store in about 1884, a year or so after Gilbert made
his land purchase, and is believed to have built the first house in the community at
that time. By 1886, there were 16 completed houses in the town, and 100 people were
living there.

The first post office opened up in 1888 with Mrs. Parmela W. Favorite as post-
mistress, and in the same year the first public school was established with 29 pupils.
Miss Gardner was the teacher. By 1890 there were 96 students and two teachers, who
were paid $300 a year each. A school had been conducted in a private home by Miss
Prentiss in 1886, and Bible classes, also in private homes, followed a little later.

Ground was broken for the first church-- the Union Chapel-- in 1888. The Trinity
Episcopal Church was erected in 1893.

- Also in 1893, the Brightwood Electric Company, a trolley line, reached the new
suburb from the District and stimulated its growth. The B & W Transit Company, which
ran out to the Glen Sligo Hotel on Sligo Creek, came in 1898.

The town, now a city, lies partly in Prince Georges County. An informal citizens'
association was formed in 1888 and was formalized a year later. The town held its
first municipal election in 1890, the year of its incorporation, when Gilbert was chosen
as the first mayor.

A committee was organized in 1893 to form a bucket brigade, following a disastrous
fire that destroyed several buildings, including the three-story, 30-room Watkins Hotel,
built only a year earlier.

Silver Spring-- 7 mi.

The community now named Silver Spring was known as Sligo until about 1898, but a
post office opened in 1861 was called Silver Spring and so was the B & 0 Station, both
taking their names from the nearby estate of Francis P. Blair, who bought land nearby
and built a summer home in about 1842, The name of the post office was changed to Sligo
two years later, in 1863.

On the 1865 map, Sligo had three stores, two blacksmith shops, a wheelwright, a
church, a schoolhouse, and a tollgate. When Thomas H. S. Boyd published his History of
Montgomery County in 1879, he added a miller, a carpenter, two physicians, and two more
churches. G. M, Hopkins' Atlas of 15 Miles Around Washington, also published in 1879,
shows the Eagle Hotel, including a store and post office, located a short distance north

= of the B & 0 station and operated by J. L. Dorsey.































